Aoy

AGEND

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION
October 16, 2023
7 P.M.

Parchment City Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan III

Vice Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Holly Evans

Commissioner Tammy Cooper Commissioner Robin Madaras

Commissioner Doug Fooy Commissioner Michael Conner
Officers

City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard

City Attorney Robert Soltis

City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz
1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call

4. Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Meeting of October 2, 2023

5. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval

6. Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
If you wish to comment regarding items ON the agenda, please follow the format below:
» State your name and address for the records
o You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments
e Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk



* Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the
Commission. You are always welcome to make an appointment with the City
Manager to further discuss your comments.

7. Consent Agenda |

10.

11.

12.

13.

Items on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealt with individually.

Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
1. Warrant No. 1500 — action
ii, Credit Card Statement, September 2023 — action
iii. Financial Reports for September 2023 — receive
iv. KABA Budget for 2024 - receive
v. KABA 2023 September Report - receive

Unfinished Business
New Business

A. Remaining ARPA Funds — Discussion
B. Honigman LLP Contract — action

Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda

Persons wishing to comment on items that are on/off the agenda are instructed to
please follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.
Mayor and Commissioner Comments

City Manager Comments

Adjournment




MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON MONDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2023.
Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. then led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call.

Present: Mayor Britigan, Commissioners Cooper, Conner, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras. City Manager Stoddard, City
Attorney Soltis, City Treasurer/Clerk Stutz.

Absent: Evans.

Moved by Commissioner Conner, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to excuse the absence of Commissioner Evans. Motion
carried.

Minutes

Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Commissioner Madaras to approve the minutes of the September 18, 2023
Regular meeting. Motion Carried.

Additions or changes to the agenda.
Add 9B Kalamazoo Township Fire Department Contract - action. Add 9C KTPD Report, Lt. Jackson ~ receive. Moved by Vice
Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Cooper to approve the agenda as amended. Motion Carried.

Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
None.

Consent Agenda
A. Questions by Commissioners were answered regarding specific items. Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported
by Commissioner Conner to receive the consent agenda items. Motion Carried.

Unfinished Business
Nane,

New Business

A Metmo - Proposal 2022-2 Early Voting, Clerk Stutz - action. Clerk Stutz gave some background on the early voting
proposition that was voted on in.November 2022. She explained that the clerks in Kalamazoo County have decided to work
together to offer the 9 days of early voting for state and federal elections required by the legislation. She reported that the
group has put together information for a grant request from the state, and that the agreement calls for municipalities to
split the costs of the election and some administrative duties. Clerk Stutz said that while these costs will raise our current
spending for elections, it is much cheaper for us to enter into the agreement and share the costs than to go it on our own.
The agreement in the packet is only a draft; timing of the final draft was such that it wasn’t possible to get it before
tonight's meeting. Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Commissioner Madaras to authorize the City Clerk to
enter into an intergovernmental agreement for early voting election services between the City of Parchment and other
participating jurisdictions within Kalamazoo County. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Conner, Cooper, Madaras.
Nays: Britigan, Fooy, Jordan.
Absent: Evans.

Abstain: None.

Moaotion Failed 3-3.

Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Cooper, to autharize the City Clerk to enter into an
intergovernmental agreement for early voting election services between the City of Parchment and other participating
jurisdictions within Kalamazoo County after Attorney Soltis has reviewed the agreement. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Britigan, Conner, Cooper, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: Evans.
Abstain: Nene.

Motion Carried 6-0.

B. Extension of Kalamazoo Township Fire Department contract — action. Mayor Britigan began by noting the current
fire contract expires on 12/31/23 and that this extension has aiready been approved by Kalamazoo Township's board. City




Minutes of the October 2, 2023 City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 2

10.

11.

12,

Manager Stoddard met with the Fire Chief and Don Martin to discuss the renewal. She had asked them for the extension so
that we could align the dates with our current year end for budgeting purposes. The language here was approved by KTwp,
and Attorney Soltis has reviewed it. Attorney Soltis noted it being straight forward. Questions were asked and answered.
Moved by Commissioner Madaras, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the extension of the current KTFD contract
at the cost of 56100 per month through June 30, 2024, and authorize the City Manager and Clerk to authorize all
documents related to the action. Commissioner Cooper noted the wonderful service we received over these past years.
Mayor Britigan noted his recent concerns with the fire department, wondering how it might impact our city. City Manager
Stoddard noted it has been business as usual. Roll call was as follows:

Ayes: Britigan, Cooper, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: Conner, Fooy.

Absent: Evans.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 4-2.

C. Kalamazoo Township Police Department report, Lieutenant Scott Jackson — receive. Lt. Jackson expressed his
appreciation for the city’s cooperation and collaboration, adding that things happen in government as well as businesses,
and that they try to focus their officers on police concerns. He then gave details on the quarterly report — 442 total calls,
120 requiring reports. 93 traffic violations, 39 citations, 10 arrests (8 property damage, 2 injury accidents). He talked about
safety at the Parchment Schools, the Middle School in particular. He answered questions from the Commission.

Citizen Comments
None.

Mayor and Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Cooper said she’s looking forward to the extension of the fire contract, that she’s been happy with their level
of service. She then thanked Lt. Jackson for his report, noting appreciation for KTPD's rapid response.

Commissioner Conner said he didn't understand why the fire department’s numbers were so high, adding he thought their
service was top notch.

Commissioner Madaras reminded everyone that there are open spots on the Kindleberger Arts Commission — chair and
festival director — which are big shoes to fill.

Vice Mayor Jordan thanked Lt. Jackson for his report, adding that the Middle School situation is difficult. He then added that
his first vote in 8A was in no way to reflect poorly on Clerk Stutz, he felt it was a matter of doing his due diligence.

Mayor Britigan noted that the PHS homecoming parade is this Friday. He then read a letter from former Mayor Heasley
thanking the Commission for their support of the Veteran's Memorial, saying he was very proud and extremely grateful for
the large donation,

City Manager Comments/Reports
City Manager Stoddard offered anyone with questions or concerns to cafl or text her.

Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Cooper and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at 8;11 p.m.

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk




City of Parchment
Check Register Report
Warrant 1500

Check Check Date Vendor Name Description Amount
37801 10/03/2023 1-800-GOT-JUNK? JUNK REMOVAL - 1710 EAST G AVENUE 409.00
37802 10/03/2023 ELECTION SOURCE ELECTION SUPPLIES . 292.34
37803 10/03/2023 1 & H OIL COMPANY FUEL CHARGES 09/01 T 08/15/2023 241,09
37804 10/03/2023 KAL CO HEALTH & COMMUNITY SERV HHW FEES - JULY 2023 34.80
37805 10/03/2023 KALAMAZOOQ TOWNSHIP SERVICES CONTRACT - SEPTEMBER + OCTOBER 84,598.61
Police $73,369; Fire $11,150; 911 Notif $479.61
37806 10/03/2023 MULDER'S NURSERY 5 FLOWERING DOGWOOD TREES - VET'S MEMORI 1,824.95
37807 10/03/2023 POINT AND PAY MONTHLYCC SERVICE FEE - AUGUST 50.00

37808 10/03/2023 SHANNON STUTZ MILEAGE - JULY, AUG, SEPT. 204.75



i

Page 2 of 2

Account Number: XCOK XXX XXXX 1548
Statement Closing Date; 09/26/23

Name and Account Number Gredit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advancas Total Activity
JIM DUBY

FOORXOOKK XXX 1892 33,000 $16.55 $122,95 $0.00 $106.39
CAMRON J BOEKHOVEN

HHXX X XXXX 9114 $3,000 $86.00 $955,39 $0.00 $886.39
SHANNON STUTZ

XOOCOOC XXXX 9125 $5,000 $0.00 $903.66 $0.00 $903.66

‘ PHIL WOLTHUIS Credit Limit Credlts Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity |
KXXK XAHK XXXK 1793 $5,000 $0.00 §151.45 $0.00 $15145
Post Date Tran Date  Referance Number Transaction Description VCN Amaunt
08721 0g/20 72301383263900019400058 SHARP SHOP KALAMAZOC M1 $15145
BILL CAHILL Credlt Limit Cradits Purchases Cash Advanhces Total Actlvity
KKK X0 XXXX 1801 $5,000 $0.00 $123.38 $0.00 $123.38
Fost Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Dascription VCN Amount
09/20 08/18 85179243262700602005368 CNE WAY PRODUCTS 268-343-3772 Mi $123.38
r JiM Dusy Cradit Limit Cradits Purchasas Cash Advances Total Activity |
HOORX XXX XKAX 1892 $3,000 $16.56 $122.95 $06.00 $106.3%
Post Date Tran Pate  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
0807 09/06 55448413249839198038401 FERGUSON WTRWRKS #3383 KALAMAZOO M $§70.41
09113 0a/12 75176793265407800 180318 PARCHMENT SERVICE CENT KALAMAZOO MI 20.00
08/15 08/14 55453703258042000048492 ADVANCE AUTC PARTS #17 KALAMAZOO MI -$16.56
0815 09/14 55453703258042000045476 ADVANGE AUTO PARTS #17 KALAMAZOG MI 16.56
09/18 0g/18 (2305573258100278435074 MENARDS KALAMAZCG EAST COMSTOGK TOWN M! $1598
CAMRON J BOEKHOVEN Credlt Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
FOOOE 0K XXXX 9114 $3,000 586.00 $955.39 $0.00 $889.39
Pest Date Tran Date  Reference Numher Transactlon Description VCN Amount
08/31 08/30 05227023242300306207820 RIETH RILEY KALAMAZOO KALAMAZOC MI $75.04
09/04 08/31 02308373244100205939427 MENARDS KALAMAZOO EAST COMSTOCK TOWN M| $36,39
49/11 G9/07 02305373251100169627030 MENARDS KALAMAZOQ EAST COMSTOCK TOWN MI $26.25
19/14 09113 02305373256300327452649 POMPS TIRE 217 KALAMAZCO M| 322550
0915 09114 553095532578380014276856 NAPA AUTO KALAMAZOO EA KALAMAZOO M -$86.00
09/15 0914 55309583257838001 388709 NAPA AUTQ KALAMAZOQ EA KALAMAZOG M| $422.22
09118 0915 55480773259191000453734 FARM & FLEET OF PORTAG PORTAGE M| $169.99
SHANNCN STUTZ Cradit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
XXX KKK XXXK 9125 $5.000 $0.60 $903.66 $0.00 $903.66
Post Date Tran Pate  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
08726 08/28 55432863240207556211716 SPECTRUM 886-707-7328 MO $119.98
09/04 a8/01 85140513245300017200023 CORNERSTONE QFFICE SYS AVALENCE@CORN M| $273.00
09/08 A8/07 05410193250105139502182 QUILL CORPORATION 800-9823400 3C $55.98
09/08 a8/07 82711183250000008966419 PIXELVINE FREEPORT M| $89.75
09/14 0813 82711183256000006191250 PIXELVINE FREEPORT MI $75.00
00/22 09721 05410193264105096175249 QUILL CORPORATION QUILL.COM SC $139.98
09/28 925 55432363268205014409327 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO $140.97

20000600 - CO0CES - 001 - 0001 - 2



Z1°91 gp*5z8’'s Tz w8e T6TIE’T 00'LET'8 sbeisog 000" 0EL-002-T0T
000 00°008°6 00" 0 000 00°00876 ITIoUSd QUOWSITISY YWOT 000" %Z2L-002-T0T
ST 02 €9 K66 T E6TLST LEEQS 00°86% ‘2 SIPDIPOR 000°22L-002-T0T
000 00" GZL 00°0 00°0 00°SZL uoTiesuaduc) §,ISHI0M 000 0Z2L-002-T0T
£6°62 GET608B‘9E 66°880°¢ G9°06T°6 00°000°9¢ uoTsUSg 600" 8TL-002-T0T
65°€ 15°9G68°¢ 00°0 6V EFT 00°000°% DTFIONPSI SOUBINSUT T00"9TL~-002-T0T
65761 PO "TPF ‘85 ZL 9L’V 9L BETFT 00-089°'zL S0URINSUI 2FTI/TE1TA=S0H 000 8TL-002-TOT
06°6T 19°299°8 90°81L 6£°2STT 007518701 Aytanoes Teroog 000" STL-002-T0T
65°12 L8"59L°8€ 0Zreve’e ET°"FL9 0T 00°0PF‘a¥w SWTL JIed - [ToIA=g 000°€0L-002-T0T
81°0¢ 80°20T'60T 7570256 ZETLBG'LE 007069 °9¢€T auTL TInd - froxieq 000" 20L~00Z2-TOT
UOTIRIISTUTWRY — 0QZ 3deg
LB S FSTPRETE LOTLBO'T 9% 699 ‘9z 00510785 satzeTETbar - 00T deg Telog
007001 1€°0 000 65 1TZ'%2 Q0 Z1Z %2 pung Isy3jo 03 ISISURIT 000" 666-00T-T0T
000 00" 60€ 0c-0 00°0 00°60€ SNCIUBT[S0STH 000°§56-00T-T0T
8¢ 6L GLE'D 00 0g T FLT 00°0ST’S butystIgqna 3 Buryutag 000°006-00T-T0T
00" 0 00090’z 050 00°0 00-090‘e TOTANYTIIUG) burTresSSEM T00°088-00T-10T
0o o 0070E0°T 000 0070 00°0E0°T uoTiowOId Al Tunumiog 000 088-00T-T0T
00°00T  ($L°059) 000 ¥L7 059 000 BUTUTRIL % $93INITISUT 000" 098-00T-T0T
0070 00°GpS‘T Q00 00" 0 00°§%5°T sang % sdIysIsqual 000" 0ER-00T-TOT
Z8°1 00" SET 2T 00°GL 00 sez 0o-09e’cT TATSS TENIDRITUON/TRUOTSSRI0I4 000 008-00T-TOT
zZ'Z% 85 9TV vetzee rARE A1y 0o teL saT1ddng butgexadp 000 0FL-00T-TOT
686G ST*LEZ £%°6 SBPT 00°'z52 2IPDTLON 000 ZZL-00T-T0T
000 00°962 0070 000 00°96¢ uotjiesusduo] §,x9I0M 000°0Z2L-00T-T0T
686G SETSTOT o€ 0% GG EY 00°6L0°T Al1TINnoag TeToog 000 STL-00T-TOT
6ETTT 00 sLe L 00059 00°620°1 000006 BWTEL JIBd - TT0IARd 000 €04-00T-T0T
satleTsTbaT - 00T 3deqg
£8IN] TPpU2dxd
S0 FS FZ-EFS'0Z8 97 "€£68°Gy 9.°680'596 00°6€2°68L"T SHONAARY TYLOL
S0°FS VZ E¥S'0Z8 9% '£68 758 9L°980 ‘596 00°622°58L T 000 3dsg TelOL
£6°8E ST Q2% ‘¢ 000 G8'6LT'Z 00°009°¢G §90INCS DHUTDUBUT ISU10 000" 569-000-T0T
FE"1C 00 EELST 00°0 00" L9Z°'F 007000702 SNORURTTIDSTH 000" ¥69-000-T0T
oo 00°000°02T 000 0070 00000021 PROUISAQ IOF JUSUSSINQUTSH 000" 08¢~000-TOT
000 00°000°L2T 000 00°0 00" 000°LET SpuUnNg I2URQ WoLd SIISURI], 000°9L9-000-TOT
61792 99°2%5°¢ 000 VETLCZ'T 00 008'% SIUSWASHAUL UC 389a83UT 000 ¥99-000-T10T
0579 a1 08% ‘L £L°96E Z8'61S 00 0008 S9UTA DTFIBAL 000°299-000-T0T
00°0 000001 000 0070 00000t PRIapuUsy $90TASS 103 sebIey) 000" 2E9-000-T0T
FS°ST Q0°85T°112 0070 00 ZVB'BE 00°000°0SZ XBJ S8TRS 2181E 000 SL5~000-TOT
17 F8 00°0%0 6 00" D96 '8F 00°096 ‘8% 00°00088 JuUeTd IO3IBM — 1URID 93238 000" ¥F5-000-TOT
0c-o 00°BZZ ‘2% 00°0 00" 0 00°822 'z putpung Texspad 2130 000" 825-000-T0T
Zv1¢ 8T°080°0TT 00°708°82 Z87666 52 00°080°0FT SUGTIZOTLOD 3315eM PITOS 000" 745F-000-T0T
000 00°00L72 000 000 00°00L°2 s294 uoTlRaIDY 000 ESF-000~T0T
20" TZ 9T "TLL'ZT 00°0 ¥8°66L°C 00°TLT ST 294 UOTSTADTURD 000" ZS%-000-T0T
IT°¥T ST 0LE ET S8°659°T S8°6LT T 00°06% "ST S89d PUR 85USDTT 000" TSHF-000-TOT
88 688 9 "GIL'E PPTEER 'S PGS F89 ‘62 00 00% “£€ S04 UCTIDSTTICD T 000" 8%5-000-T0T
LBTLT 0g 682 e PP 6L9 0L BTL 007000 ‘% S9XBL U0 AlTPUSg 000°SFP7P-000-TOT
00°0 00002 %FT 000 000 00 00Z'¥FT XRL 2IRYS gEls AJTUNUmO) TesoT 000" TF7-000-TOT
TETOOT (00 L) 000 004022 ootopz’e SOTATTIORI TBTAISNPUI — SINE]L 0G0 S07-000-T0T
T0°00T (00*pL) go*oe 00°%L8'008 0070087008 SnuoAsYy XL 000" F0F-000-T0T
000 3dag
ganusaoyd
aNONd TYEENED - T0T Pung
as=sn {"TEONGY)  TYIMON {ESVHEDEA) ASYHIONI  (TYWHHONIY) IADINE AFANTHRY NOILdTHOSHd HIGHON 19
0ag % AINYTEL £Z0Z/0E/60 HIKOW £20Z/0E/60 ¥Z-£202
HIITIIVAY ¥Od ALIATILOW HONVIVd dLA

ZI/1 rabeg

£Z0Z/0£/60 ONIANT qOI¥Ed

LNINHDYYd A0 ALID ¥0d IU0ddd dUNLIANTdXE

INY HNNdAHT

quswyoaied -ga
g8 1128

WY S2:1T €20¢/07/01



BE"627 ST SFO'T 99°ZFT S8 FEF 00°08F ‘T SIBDTPIH 000°2ZL-0F7-TOT
000 00" 058 000 000 00°0Sg’E uoTiesusdme] £,I04I0M 000 0ZL-0FF-TOT
95 6T 0L L8¥0C €Z'LOF'E GE"ZTIF’'L 00006 7LE UoTSUS 000" 8TL-0FF-TOT
29°€¥T  (6L°9F0°T) 00°0 6LTOPF'E 00'00% ‘¢ aTqrionpag souURINSUI T00°9TL-07%-T0T
L¥"5T §¢°ZST 18 £S5 F95°E SLTLFS 0T 007008 1% soULLNSUT I TT/Te3TASOH 000 9TL-0FF~T0T
15°1¢ LBTOTVOF 98°609 ET 658°T 00700675 AlTInnsg TBIVOS 000 STL-0PF-TOT
81" ¥Z LT 90T 2L 8F°905°L £L°E66°22 00°00T "56 PWTL TTnd - [ToIARd 000" Z0L-0FF-T0T
E80TATSg OTIONd - 0FF 3ded
6L"LE LS 19626 €9°1L8'TT £ CLL'SE 00 0%L ‘82T 9ITd - gcg 3deg Teaol
007§ 000Gk ’ST 00°0 000 00°0S% ‘ST TeaTdes 000 0L6-9£E-TCT
00°0 00T00E’0T 0070 0c-o 00°0CE 0T SI030BIRUCDH JUTEH ¥ ITedaYy 000 0E6-9€E-T0T
LT LT 0E°6IE’'C (e[ ]e] 0L 08% 0o oos’c SSTITTTIN 000 026-9€E-TOT
T894 05°805°¢€ 000 05167 'TI 007000°ST SpUCg 3 ®DUBINSUT 000°016-2£€-T0T
05 0¢ 8L°600°¢ T9°696 ZC BIE"T 00°GZL’% SUOTIED TUNUWO)) 000 058~8£E-TOT
FE"0E 00°00Z2°1S 00" 0ST°TT 00 00c‘ee 00005 ‘EL TATSE TENIONRINUO)/TRUCTSSRIOI] 000 008-9€E-TOT
000 00°50T 0070 000 00°'60T ga11ddng Ajsgeg 000°08L-2€5-T0T
8€°8 89°C¥a 298 Zet98 00"0E0°T seTTddng eourusjutery ? I1tvedsy 000 GLL-2EE-TO0T
6176 TE"5E6 04769 6996 00'0ED°T TI0 3 2UITOSED 000" 9FL-98€-T0T
0c 0 007002 00" 0 00" 0 00°00Z°G sarrddng burjexsdp 000" 0FL-9EE-TOT
21Td - 9¢g 3daq
£8°ZE 0E ET8 10E 0L°25T %L 0L TZSLFT 00 GEEC ‘67 801104 — 00¢ 3ded Telof
€€ €L 0D"9LE'E6E 00 69€°EL 00°8EL'IFT 00 FTIC 0FF *ATS§ [ENQDOBIZJUO)/TPUGISSSICI] 0007 008-00E-T0T
20T ¥E 26 95°0T 9601 00°€0T aIBDTPSH 000 ZZL—00E-TOT
0E"L 98 gLS AR FT S¥ 00819 A3Tanzeg {eroog 000 STL-00E-TOT
L9978 00°ZL9 'L 00 82L 00" 8ZL 00°C0F’S8 SwTL 3Ivd - [ToxAed 000 E€0L-00E-TO0T
soTTed - 00g 3deqa
5222 05°189 ‘02 0o-ooz‘e 05" 2I6°S 00" %LS 9T saoaTaxeg TeboT - g1z 1dsg Tejox
¥5'6 0G TET'6 00°004 05296 00°F60°0T SI931EH BDTT0d-A9UI017Y 000" 208-012-T0T
¥070¢€ 00 0ESTT 00°00G6°T 00°056°F 00°08% 91 Texsusn - AdUICIZY 000°T08-0TZ-T0T
ga0TAT®g TebsT - pTz adsg
11°12 0L7G6E°TCE LB FLY ST 0£°€66G8 00 68ELOT UOTIBRIISTUTUDY - 0QZ 2ded Telog
000 00°000°CT 000 00°0 0o 000‘ZT TedToUTId-JuswaiIlay 19sQg 000" T66-002-10T
00°00T (g1 CZS) L6 LBT rARIFAS 000 SNOQUBTIIOSTH 000 656—002-T0T
00" 0 00°6E0’E 000 000 0D 6E0'E SIOIDRIJUCY AUTEH 3 Itedsy 000" 0£6-002-T0T
LE£Z 6L ZLY'E 000 TZ°650°T 00"ZEG’% S9T3LTTAN 0007 0Z6-002-T0T
21708 D0 %S¥’T 0070 00°658°S 00 ETE’L spueq ¥ °0uUBInNSUT 000 0T6-00Z-T0T
00" 0 00709072 0070 000 00°090°2 butystignd 3 burjutrag 000 006-00Z-T0T
98" L7 567696 00° 5T S0TELE 00 GEL’T BuTuieil ® S93n3TISUT 000°098-00Z-T01T
¥6°5E PYTOIB F 65896 95°20L°T 00 aI5‘L SUOT}RDTUNINIO)N 000°058-002-10T
0G %€ 00" T6L 0SS Z5F 00"G%F 00°9€2'T song % sdTUsIsquen 000°0E8-002-T0T
8002 S2°028°L 05 €16 GLTF96°T 0076876 S82TAX25 Tojnduo) 000°S08-002~10T
LETET LLTZS0 8T 5L7€08 £2°606°¢ 00°8586°¢c2 ‘AJeg TRNINBIJUOD/TRUOTSSDJ0Ig 000" 008-002-T0T
Ly € z0 880°¢ 86" L 86" %L 00°E9T‘2 ga1Tddng 22uUSlUTEH 2 arTedsy 000" GLL-002~T0T
06718 £8°ZLE £5°66F LT £89°T 00°020°2 goT1ddns Huriexsdo 000°0%L~-002-T0T
ssanjlTpuadxyg
aNnd TYEENTD - TOT Pund
a4sn ("T¥HEONGY) TYREON (ISYIUDE) HSYHEONI  [T¥HNUONGY) TYiRON LA390ANg dEANIHY NOTILATUDSAA YEAHON 19
Iodd TONVIVE £202/0€£/60 HLNOW £Z20Z/0£/60 FZ-£202

ATV TIVAY

AVEA rabeg

d0d ALIATLDV

HONV'TIVY GLA

£Z0C/0€/60 DNIANE dOI¥dd

LNAAHOYYd 40 ALID ¥0d 1d90dEd FUNLIANIAXHE NV ANNIATI

juswuyoreg :dd
§85 I=8E()

W GZ:1T £202/01/0T



8Z'8¢ 2LT0E0'89C T 6% ZFLGST 827 888 ‘66¥F 00°6T6LAL’T SEANITANAIXT THLOL
S0 %§ FZ LR 028 9% €68 758 9.°G80°596 007629 °68L°T SENNTATY TYIOL
ONQE TYEENTD - TOT Pung
8287 ZL'0E0'892'T 6% "Z¥LSST 87°888'66% 00" BI68'LIL’T SHANLIANAAXHA TYLOL
78°92 95°0TE"9€T 00°L5E°2T ¥F-810'0% 00*6ZE ‘98T |aINATND ¥ UCTIESIDSY ‘SiIBg 16 3deg TEIOL
00°0 00°08T’9 00°0 00" 0 00°08T’9 Tesdtden 000 0L6-TSL-TOT
£2°9 SETHP ‘T 00" 66T 5978651 007000752 SIC3DBRAIUC) JUTRK 3 Itedey 000 0E6-T5L-TOT
£8°LE LT 9%G'F 08" LEE €8799.L°F 00 €TE’L SSTITTITIN 000°0Z6-TGL-TOT
8E€78L 00°GE5°T 000 00°696°¢g 00°00T ‘L Spucg ® IDURINSUL 000°0T6-TGL-TOT
00" 0 00°000°ST 000 0070 00°000°ST "ALSS TEN}DRIJUCR/TBUOTSS2J0Id 000" 008-TSL-TOT
000 00°2T% 00°0 000 00°ZT¥ sa17ddng Alsgeg 000" 08L-TSL-TOT
¥Z°82 5£°80976 €F 82Z°T GG 18L‘E 00 06E'ET sorrddng eoueusiuTenw ¥ ITedsy 000" GLL-TGL-TOT
£F" 9% 06 FFS'T Sk FEE 0T 6££°T 00°r88°2 TTO % SUTTOSED 000" 9FL-TGL-T0T
00" GE L7 Z8S Z0'€6 £STLBE 007058 2IEDTPSN 000" 2ZL-TGL-T0T
000 00 005°1 000 0070 007006 T votiesusdio) €,I93I0M 000°0ZL-TSL-T0T
1208 66 L6 ST 96°GET’'Z TO"90L'S 0000z 'ze uoTeuUsg 000" 8TL~TGL-TOT
GL 96T (0§-%¥5e°T) 000 05" FSL 2 00°00%°'T STT1oNpa SDURINSUT TO0 "9TL-TGL-TOT
087 €T ££°515 0% 87 "80T°T L9 FBEE 0oto08'ee SDURANSUT 219/ Te3tdsoH 000°STL-TSL-T0T
9¢°9¢ SPLeT’? §L°L6E SGZLET 00 005°¢ AjTanoes TeIoOCS Q00 STL-TSL-TOT
80" LE G0 B80T ‘S€E 85 CLE ‘9 56 T69 '0¢ 0o 008’ss awtTL TInd ~ [To0IABg 000 ZOL-TSL-TOT
2INYTN]) % UOTIesaDsYW ‘8iIBd - T54 adeg
67798 LL Le8’e 00°0 £z zotT’0s 00" 000’85 sRsUSAXE jUPID 1ueld I91eMm ~ (65 3deqg TB30%
00'00T  (L0°5G6) 00°9 L0°9G6 000 S9TITTTIN 000" 0Z6-T65-T0T
YLTY8 9T1"£68°8 00°0 787971 ‘56F 007000785 TATDg TeN]DRIJUOD/ [EUQTESI0Ld 000°008-T65-T0T
00°00T  {ZE-6S) 00°0 ZE' 66 000 soTrddng buriexsdp 000" OFL-T65-TO0T
mwmﬂwnmumm JurIs u.ﬁm_ﬂm A=23BM - TS PQ&D
LG TZ BL°669'65¢ zZ"68E'8E ZZ BEB'LE 00 BEG EST §90TAT8S OTTAnd - QFF 3ded TeIoL
000 00°000°G¥H 0070 000 00 000 ‘SY Teltde) 000°0L6-0FF-TOT
00°00T  {S5L°0SE) 00°0 L7068 (oTolls] STOSUBT SIS TH 000°556-0FF-T0T
€E°0E PCTLO9F 8 68965 9.°989°¢ DO PST ZT SI0]0RIJUOD“JUTeH ¥ Itedsy 000 0E6-0F¥—T0T
61702 COTPFTEE ¥9 0€£8°1 LETGS8S 00000 ‘62 butgubtT 1e2138 000 926-0FF-TOT
A 62°098°9 08'LEE TL 00T'2 00" 196’8 SRTITTTIN 000°0E6-0FP-TO0T
8L €L 0§°¢Ls’T 0070 0G 827 ‘% 00 000’‘s Spuog 3 9IURINSUL 000 0T6-0F%-TOT
00°0 00°6TS 000 00" 0 00616 UoTIOWOTT A7 TUTWIGT) 000°088-0F7-TOT
000 00°60¢€ 00°0 00°0 00608 BuTuTRIL 3 $93INITISUT 000°098-0%F-TOT
SE6°FE 90°0L9 86°6T1T F6 658 00" 0E0°T SUOTIRD TUNINOD 000 058-0%F-TOT
0070 00" LZ6 00°0 000 00°LZ6 sang 3 sdIysIsqueKR 000" 0E8-0FF-TOT
9L'GF FT-S%9°T 88°69. 98 FHE T Q0 060°E TRIUSY WIOITUN 000" ST8-0F%-T0T
9927 62 ZFS00T S0 ¥8070T TLTLGF 62 00°000°0ET gebIvyD UOTIDDTTOD UsTony 000 0TI8-0F7-T0T
€2 22 69L76 00°05 8L°0ET 00°00070T TAIBS TENIOBRIZJUON/TRUOTSSDIoAd 000°008-0F¥-T0T
000 00°S18 000 0070 00°GTS soTTddng Ajares 000°08L-0FF-T10T
00761 ELTBFE ‘6 SEZT L2°059°T 007000 TT satrddng sourusjuUTeH % ITedsy 000 SLL-0FP-TOT
vo"zg 857250°¢ LLTOEE ZF6LY T 00 ZEG‘F ITO 3 SUTTCSED 000" 9FL-0FF-TOT
00" 0 00°sLs'2 0070 00°0 0076462 seT1ddng Butjexsdo 000" 0FL-0FF-~T0T
ssangTpusdxy
aNNd TYJENED - TQT Pund
aEsn (TYRIONEY) TYNON (ASYIUONd) HSYAEONT  [TYINMONEY) TVHHMON LASANE JAIANINY NOTLATHDSIA HETHAN 19
10ad % TONYIVL £Z0Z/0E/60 HLNOW £Z0Z/0E/60 FZ-£20¢
JTdYIIVAY 03 ZLIATLOV HONVIVd dLE

rAVAS 1abueg

£20¢/0£/60 DNIANYT dOIVAd

LNAWHDEYd 40 ALID Y04 Id04dd HANLIANIART ONY HONHATT

quswyonIieg tgQ
§58 :I98n

W¥¢ SZ:1T €£€20Z/0T/0T



SHHANLTANAIIXH 2 SHANIZAMY A0 LAN

GLT9Z9Z (8F L8F "LPF) (E0"678769) 8% "L6TG9% Q0 OTL LT
ANE TVIENED - 10T pung
adgsn ("TYRONEY) TYRHMON (ESYHIOAA) ASYAUONT  (TVHIONTY) TYREON LASING OEANERY NOILAT9D83d AAAHAN 5
Isad % AONYTYE €202/0E/60 HINOW €E0Z/0E/60 ¥Z-£202
ATIVTTEAY HOd ALIATIDY ADNYIVE dLA

CL/¥

rabeg

£20Z/0E/60 ONIGNE JOIddd

LINIHHOEYd A0 ALID ¥04 I1¥904dEY JHNLIANAIXA ONY dONIATT

JusuyoIed 1gad
§gg -"aegq
WY S2'T1T £20Z/0T/0T



000 00°0LZ'6 00°C 000 00°0LZ’s 1teEs 000 E£5L—-BLF-Z07
98°0¢ 6T CTL 000 T8 LIE 00°0E0’T TTO 3 QUTTOSED 00097 L-8LF-Z0T
FS° BT 59 60T Zv'6 GETHE 00°0%T 3ITVDTRIH 000" ZZL-8LF-Z0C
00°0 007029 00" 0 (13910} 00°02% ucTlesusdwo) S, I93I0M 000" 0CL-BLY-T0C
85722 €L ZTET 1% 8FE LT LLY 00°000°¢c UoTSUSJ 000 8TL-8LF-20Z
000 00°0S2 00°0 o0 00052 STATIOUPSQ SDURINEUT 100 9TL-8L%-20€
96" LT FZ 191’2 £9°652 9L"BESB 00°'000°E SDURINSUI 9ITT/Te31ds0H 000" 9TL-8LF-20C
Y0 Fe SEC9T Z2Z° 0% G9°9FT 007019 AjTanoes [eIoos 000'STL-8LF-E0C
8¢ 8¢ 668809 16299 T0°TTv‘C 0070068 swTL [Tnd - TTozhed 000'Z0L-8LF-202
SOUBURIUTEN I21UuTm - 8.7 1dag
£8°1¢ 8L 66T '1C 60°58Z2°2 22 0zZ6’'s 00°0ZT Le S22TAXSS DrFFedl - Si% 3deg TRIOL
TLT6E V6 6L0°E LOTTIF'T %0°0ZF '€ 00 005 1T SIojoeIqUOD TJUTER ¥ arTedsy 000 0E6-SLF-Z0T
00°0 00°GLG'2 000 000 00 5LS ‘e go17ddng sourusjuren ¥ atedey 000 SLL-SLF—20T
0070 00°STS 000 00°0 G0"STS 1TO ® SUTITOSES 000 9%L-SLF-20T
6% 9T TZ2°00T L0 L 6L76T 0070t 2RI TP 000" Z¢L-SLP~20T
0070 00" 0TS 0070 0070 00 0TS uctiesusduod £,I83I0M 000" 0ZL-SLP~20C
T7 6T L8 FTO’'Z L5791 £T°68¥% 0oT00s’e ucteuag 000"8TL-SLE-20Z
0070 00°00¢ 0070 000 00002 2TgTIoNPad SOUBRINSUL 100 9TL~-5LF-20C
L9702 TEE€86°T 9L GLT 697916 00'005°Z SOUBINSUI BFTI/Te3TAdSOH 000 9TL-SLF-208
2697 8E STV 0€°0¢ 298 00°00% AjTanosg TeT30% 000 GTL-SLP-Z0C
8922 L0908 % ZET Q6T €67 E€6E°T 00°00Z g awty TTnd - TToxded 000 Z0L-SL¥-Z0T
SOOTAISS OTIIEAL - G adsda
1992 0§°8¢£ 8T ZETG06 05 759 ‘9 00°EL67%E 2OURULIUTRK SUTINCd - £9¢ 1dsg TelOL
LTk GETLELYS 000 S9°TLE ¥ 00700001 SIOIDRIFUOD " JUTRH » ITedsy 000 0E6-£9%-202
£F°8 PE°69T°C 00°0 99°66T 00'69£°Z seTTddng souerusjurel 3 atedey 000" GLL-ES8F-202
00°0 00608 00°0 000 00608 1TO 2 SUTTOSED 000°9F¥L-E9F%-202
£2°2T 147601 Tz L 62 5T 00°GZT SIDTROH 000 ETL-E9F-202
Q00 00 5¢€¢8 0o o 000 00°6¢5 uoTjesusduo) s,I8XI0M 000 0ZL-£9F-20%
v 2T €0 90L°T 05°691 L5 E6F 00700272 UOTSUDd 000 BTL-£9%-20T
000 00°01¢ 000 (129 0] 00°012 STUIIONP2J 2OURINSUT T00"91L-€£9%-202
67 €2 62'E89°T LLTSLT TL7915 00°00z°'e souRINsUT BITT/TeITdS0H 000 9TL-£9%-Z08
Zv 2T 6L 65F 8 0¢ 1269 00 §es AjTanoeg TRTDOE 000" GTL-£97-20¢
£9°97 66 " BIF’S 05" L06S I0°T80°T 00005 °9 SUITL TTMA - TIoTAed 000" Z0.-£9%-20¢
SOUBUSIUTEH 2UTINCY - £9% 3deq
(oTvhdy} 007000 ‘20T 000 00°0 00°00G“Z0T uUcTIoNILsSUoD ~ TSF 3dad 1e3ol
00°0 00-000°20T 00" 0 Q0" g 00°000°20T SI0QVBIAZUOD "JUTEH 3 xTeddy 000" QE6-T4F-20C
UOTIINIISUOD — TGF Jdag
S3IN)Tpusdxg
75792 TO V00 LET LL ZL? 8T 66°G6F 6F 00 005981 SANNIATT TYLOL
75792 TO V00 LET LLTZLE 8T 66°G67 ‘6F 007006 ‘98T ¢oo adea Tel0L
F5°92 TO P00 °LET LLTELY 'S8T 66 567 6% 00005 ‘98T IS5 I0¥ — SJURID 23838 0007 2%5-000-202
000 3deg
sonU=ADY
aund IITULS H00¥H - Z0Z PUmd
azsn {TYREONGY ) TYIRION (ISYEYDHA) FSYTEONT  {TVWAONIY) TYWION IASANd QEANAWNY NOIIATHISHA HAGHAN T
IH0d % HONYTIYd €Z0Z/08/60 HINOW €€0Z/0E/60 FE-E£E0Z
ATOVITVAY ¥0d ALIAILDY ADINYIVE ALK

Z1/S

rabeg

LNAWHDEYd 40 ALID Y04 L190dH¥ HHNLTANIAXH

£Z0Z/08/60 9ONIANA dO0Td9d

ANY¥Y JONIATE

qusuusIRg 1gd
ggg :I98n

WY GZ:TT £¢02/0T/0T



8T €6T {€6° 727 '8%) 60206 ‘€T £6°L06 1L (00" LTS 9T) SMMALIANTAXT % SHNNIATY 0 LEN

998 76 82F ‘68T 897 0LG ¥ 90" 885 LT 00°LT0'E0C SETANLIANAAXT TYLOL
¥5°92 TO'FO0'LET LLTELT 8T 66°56% ‘6F 00 006 ‘98T SANNAATY TYIOL
AN LAFYLS Y00V ~ ZOZ Pund

99°8 76°82ZF 'S8T 89 0LS ¥ 90885 LT 00"LTI0'E0E SHANLIONTIRA THLOL
89°2 TS°906 12 8572871 6F L6 0050522 UOTIBILSTUTWPY ~ zgF 31deg Te23ol
000 00700002 0nto 60°0 00°000°02 PREUISAQ SATIEILSTUTWRY 000" 096-28F-202
59°£Z LZST 9g T EL'F 0070z SIEOTPOKR 000" 2ZL-28F~202
0070 00°ST 000 000 00°ST UOTIREUIAUC] 5, ISHION 000°0ZL-C8F-20T
8T°8T LETLTY ¥6°0¢€ £L°86 007018 uoTsuad 000 8TL-E8F-20T
000 00" 0% 000 00°0 00" 0F 2TATIONP3Q SOUBRINSUT T00°STL-28F-202
££°92 96" ZTb ST6F Py LRT 00086 soueInsul =JTI/Teitdsod Q00 9Ti-28%-20¢2
L5°52 0885 BL"S 0z°0%Z 00" 6L Ajtanoeg TeTOOS 000 STL-Z8%-207
L6'GT 19056 GETGh 6E°ZEC 00082 T SWTL TINd - [[oTAed 000" Z0L-28%Y-20Z

UOTIERIFSTUTWUPY - Z8F 2deq

S5L°9T ST %6612 6T°9TZ'T 58°6Zp P 00°02F ‘9% SOURUDJUIRN J97UTM - gLF 3d=a TE30L

seanyTpusdxy
ANGH LAHYLS J0L0YH - Z0Z pundg

agsn (TYHNONEY) TYREOR (ISVITIDET) HESYANONI  (TVWHONTY) TYHEON LI5angd TAONTRY NOILATHISHT HEEHAN 19
LDdg 3 HONYTVd £202/0£/60 HINOW €202/0E/60 ¥Z-£207
TIGYTIIVAY MOd ALIATIOV AOINYIYE QLA
£20C/0€/60 DNIANT doId=d JusWyUDIBI 1gqd
Sgg 1xosn

Z1/9 :ebeg LINSWEOYYd A0 ALID H04 IH0dMY HYALIANHAXA ANY ANNHAEA WY GZ:TT £20Z/0T/01



000 00 081’9 000 000 00°08T'2 31ES 000" €SL-8LF-E0TZ
98°0¢ 6T 2TL 000 T8 L1E 00°0E0°T TIC 3 surloseEs 000 9%L-8LF-E0Z
L9 €T 89°0TT 626 ZE'FE 00°S¥T SIPD TIPSR 000 ZZL-8LF-EQE
000 00529 00"0 0070 00 529 uotjesusdwo) §,ISYI0OM 000 0CL-8LF-E0Z
69°¢Z F9°028°E TET952 9L 6LY 00 000 ‘e uoTsusg 000 8TL-8LF-E0Z
00°0 005852 000 000 007562 2TYTIONPSI SOUBANSUT T00 9TL-8LF-E0T
9% ' BZ PE9FTT Gz 1G¢ 99 "£6§ 00°000°€ spuransul =JTT/Te3TdsoH 000 'STL-BLF-E0T
98'€Z LZ89% 89 "6E €L79%T 00619 Ajtanoeg TeTsOg 000 STL-BLF-£0Z
6¢°8Z - 66°98079 6" €59 TO'ETF T 00°005°8 oWl TTnd - TToLARdg 000 ZOL-8L¥-E0T
SOUPUSAUTERW I=33UTM —~ 8LF 3dsg
8% ST Z6778079T 60" LSE'T BOTS¥6°E 00°BZO'ST SaDTAISS DIIFEATL - GLF 3d3d [Pict
1608 008711 00°00¢% 007005 00°819 SICIDRIZUCD  JUTeR ¥ JTeday 000 0E6-SLP-EQT
000 00°0ST‘S 0070 000 00°0GT’S seTTddng eourusjuten @ aredsy 000 SLL-SLF-E£0E
000 00°STS an*o 00°0 00°GTS 1TO 3 DUTTOSED 000 9PL~SLF-E0C
0€°%T 69°6TT 569 TE 6T 00°SET 218D TIPaN 000" ZZL-SL7-E0T
000 0C 065 000 0070 00°066 uoTiesuaduo] s, IeqI0N 000" 0ZL-SL¥Y-E0CT
50761 ¥9°£20'2 6576GT 9L 9L¥ 00700672 uoTsuag 000" B8TL-SL¥-E0T
000 0C 0%zT 000 00'0 00" 0%¢ 21qT1onpag souRINSUI TO0"9TL-SLF-E0T
91" 02 88°666°T 0F"TLT Z1° %095 00°005°2 aTURINSUL 9ITT/TeITdS0H 000" 9TL~GLF-E0T
LZ T 97 L6 SLT6T AT 00°085G A3TINDeg TRIQ0S 000" STL-GLF-E0C
86" TZ GFTLER'F 0% "687 G6°Z9E°T 00 0028 2wTy TTnd - TroxdAed 000" 20L-5LF-E0T
SOO0TAISES OTIIRIL - GLF 3dsg
5976 zg-zis‘ce e 988 8T EFG 2 00 %se'9¢ 2OURUSAUTEN 2UTINOd - £9% 1ded TeIodL
000 00°000°0T 000 000 oo ocooT sIojoeIjuold-juler ¥ Ireded 000 0E6-€9%-E0%Z
00°0 00°205°¢ 00°0 000 00 cos’'E gerTddng sourusjutey 3 Iredsy 000 SLL-E9%-E0¢
0070 00 60% 0070 000 007 60€ TTO ® SUTTOSED 000 9¥L-E8F-£0F
96" €T 9L " ¥2T 0gL ¥Z 02 00°G6%T 2IBDTROH 000 'ZEL-E9F-£07
00°0 007629 000 00'0 00529 uoTiesuaduo) $,I9}I0M 000 08L-E9F-£0Z
o5 A F0T90L°T TG°69T 96 "E6F 00 00Z’‘e ucTsuUsg 000°8TL-E9F-€02
Q00 00° 652 0oto 000 00°G5Z 8TqTIoNpad SOUEINSUT TO0 9TL-E£3F-£02
6% €T 0£°€89°T GLTSLT 0L'91G 00 ooz’ SOUBRINSUT SITT/TRITASOH 000 9TL-£9F-£0T
L6 ET T¥ €€6 $8°0E 65798 00029 Aztanoeg IRTOOE 000 GTL-£9F-£0T
£6° 12 TE 7L0°G £5°L0S 69°6ZF ‘T 007005 ‘9 aWwT TInd - TToTA=g 000" Z0L-£2F-£02
SOURUSIUTRR SUTINCY - £9% 3dsg
000 00°000°2T 00°0 0070 00700072t ueiionalsuod - Tk 1deg TElon
0G0 007000721 000 0070 00T Q00T TATIDE TRNIIRIZUOD/TPUOTSSRI0L] 000" 008-TSP-£08
uctTionIisuc) — [ ddea
S3IN3ITpuadxy
£5'9¢ £8TLEB'SS £0°825 "L LT 291702 0000094 SEONIATY TYIOL
£5797 €8 LEB'SS £E0°8Z5 L LT°291°02 00°000°94 000 31dag TE30L
£5°9% £87LE87GS €0 BZGL LT 29102 00°000°9L TS 20W - SIURID 23015 000°9FS-000-£0%
ogo 3deq
SHNUBADY
aNNd LEFELS TY00T - £0¢ Pund
aasn ("IVFHONEY) TVINION (ISYAGIIC) ASYHIONI  (TYWMONGY) TYWEON LADANE AHANARY NOILAI¥OSHa GEARON 19
19adg % AINTIYL £202/0£/60 HLHOW £20Z/0£/60 7Z-£202
TTIVIIVAY ¥0d ALIAILOV AONYIVd LA

2L/ L

tebeg

£Z0Z/0€/60 DNIANT dq0THAEd

LNARHIEYd 40 ALID ¥0d LHO4d M FINITANEAXH ANY EONHATI

juLWyoIrd da
Q88 11380

WY SZ:1T €202/01/01



8y zg (9T LT6 98] Is°168°E ST 0506 {00°L98'LE) SHMANLTANAIXHT 3 SHANEATYE I0 IAN
0L°0T 66 F5L'CH 25°9€9°¢ T0"2TI1T 00°L98'€0T SHAALIANAIXT TYIOL
£5°92 £8°LEB’SS €0 8BTS L LTTZ9T'0€ 00 000‘9L SHANFATS TYIOL
TQNNA TETELS T¥00T - €07 pung
0L°0T 66" F5L°26 z5t9g9’s TOZIT'IT 00 L9BE0T STANLIANIIXT TELOL
8¢ 75"GEG 2T LG"Z8T 9% " L6S Q0 EET’ET UOTIRIISTUTWDY — z8% 3deq Te3oL
ooo 00°000°0€ 00°0 000 00700002 PESYIBAD SATIRIISTUTUDY 000°096-28%-€02
Z6 8T LT 0¢ 981 £LTF 00°5Z SIBOTPSR 000 2gL-28%-£02
000 6081 00°0 000 00°81 uoiiesusdwo) §,IXI0OM 0007 02L-28%-£02
AGFRT LT L®S ¥6°0E £L°Z6 00" 0F9 uoTsuag 000 "8TL-CBF-E0C
000 0005 00°0 0G0 00058 STATIoNPS([ SOUBANSUTL T00°9TL-Z8F-E0Z
90°1¢ 957255 ST 6% PPOLVT G0°00L 2OUBINSUT 8ITT/Te3TdSCH 000°9TL-Z8F-€0Z
0z° 02 08 6L gL°g 0z 0e 0o 00T Ajranceg Teroos 000" $TL-E8F-£07
LL* O Fo°L92°T FE£G6 9€ ZEE 00°002°T UL TTnd - TroxAed 0007Z0L-Z28%~-£02
uoTiRIJSTUTURY - Z8F 3dag
€5°TZ TLTEZE ST 2070121 62°920°% 00°0GE’EZ SOURURIUTRH I91UTM — 3.% 3deg Teicl
00700T  {0¥°18S) 00°0 0F" 1865 00 ss11ddng sourusjuUTeH 3 ITedey 000" GLL-8LF-E0T
ssanyTpusdyy
ANOAZ EOFELS TYVOOQT - €02 Pund
assn ("TYWIONEY) TVREON (SYIIDMAC) ZASYMUONT  (TYVIRONDY) LADANY AIANINY NOIIIIHD8Ha HIGHNN IO
19ad 3% ADNYTHI £T0Z/0E/60 HINOW £20C/0E/60 FZ-£202

ATIVIIVAY

c1/8 rebeg

b0d ALIATLLOV

HORYTYd dLX

LNAWHDYYd Jd0 AITO d0d LHU0d@dd FUNIIANTAXT

£Z202/0E/60 ONIANA dOI¥dd

quswyoIed gQg
ggg rrasn

iy HNNEATYT WY GZ:TT £€202/0T/01



81291 {88895 6RT) €9 PZT B6T 88 ZEZV V6T 00" 7587F0E STINLIANAIKE ® SEHOANIATY A0 IEN

6972 §5°0T8‘82Z 0.°€€9'¢ SFTSEE’Q 00°9FT“GEZ STANLTANTIXE TEIOL

€L°Z6 LI ThZ 68 ££78SL°006G £€°BGL 006G 007000 0%S SANNAATT THLOL

jusmdoTosopay PISTIUMCIE — TG7 PUd

69°¢ G5 018’822 0L7€€9°'Z S¥ SEES 00°8F1‘gee STINLIANIAXH TYLOL

69°¢ G5 0T8'82¢ 0LTEES'T SPTEEE e 00°9%17'GET 000 3dsq TR2OL

00°0 00°000°LET 00°0 000 0070007221 PUnd ISYIe 03 IaJsSued] 000 666-000-152

0070 00°%8L°8 00°0 000 00°%¥8L°8 asusdxy 3sarenur 000" S66-000-15%

00°0 00°z%9¢ 6% 000 000 00°29¢'6F TedTouTIg-3uamaITysy 149Q 000 T66-000-T5€

000 00°00070F% 00°0 000 00 000°0F PESUISAQ SATIBIISTUTUPY 000°096-000-T5¢2

SETE9 SSF99 ‘e 0L EER‘Z Sk SE€’9 00" 000701 TATBE TRNIORIJUOD/TRUOISS®IOL] 000°008-000-15%¢

o000 adsa

SQINJTPULdKY

€L 26 L9°TFC'6E E££78%L700G ££78547005 007000 ‘0FS SHNNAATY TYLOL

£L°TH L9°T%Z'6¢E €ETRGL 008 CET85L7006 00000 '0%5 000 3dad TelOL

£L°C6 L9 1FT 68 ££°8GL7005 £eeasL ‘o0s 00°00070%¢ |NuUaAIY ¥elL 000 ¥07-000-152

000 3dsg

SOTIUSABYT

JUaUdOTSASPSY PIoTIuMoId — [SZ PUNd

assn (TYWIONSY) TYRNON (USVEEOHAA) SSYANONI  (IVWHONEW) 'THIEON 139009 A9INARY NOILATHOSHA AGHAN T
I9ad 2 ADNYTYS £Z0Z/0£/60 HINOH €Z0Z/0E/60 ¥Z-£20¢

ATAVITYAY H0d ALIATLOY HONYIVE QLA

Z1/6 tebeq

LNARHDEYd H0 ALTID ¥04d

£202/08/60 DNIANE dOIYdzd

LHOdTY FYOLIANEdXd INY dONEATS

JUDWYIIR (]
§58 fI9sn
W& GZ:1T £€202/0T/0T



¥etz {00 FEZ’0OT) 00" 0 00 %ET {00-00070T) SHUNITANEIYHE 3 SHANTATS A0 LI

00°0 00"000°01 00" 0 00°0 00°000°0T STIALIANZEAXE TELOL

00°00T (00 "vET) 00" 0 00°%E£Z 00°0 SANNIATY TELOL

IONAd HMEL - 667 Puna

0070 00°000°0T oo 000 00 000‘0T SEANLIANAIYT THLOL

notn 00 00070t oo 0G0 00000 0T 000 adeqg TRICL

000 00000701 000 000 00°000°0T SNO2URTTIOSTH 000°$56—-000-662

000 3deg

saanlTpusdxy

00"00T {(00°¥€2) 00°0 00°¥€2 0070 SANNAATE TYLOL

0C 00T (00" FET) 000 00" ¥E2Z 00°0 000 3deq TE3OL

00°00T {00°¥EZ) 000 00" %€ a0-o SNOBUBTTSOSTH 000" F69-000-667

o000 adag

SONUSADY

AN J3¥L - 667 PUnd

amsn (TYIMONEY) TVREON (ISYIIDEC) HSYHIONI  {TVWHONAV) TYIUION LEDANT ATANIRE NOIIdTHDsHEd HAFGRNN 19
1909 & AONYTVE £20Z/0€/60 HLNOH £Z0C/0E/BD FZ—£202

ATATIIVAY

gr/01  :sbeg

"Od ALTIATLOV

HONVTYE dLX

€202/0£/60 ONIANE doIddd

LNAWHOEYd J0 ALID ¥Y0d IU0dWd HUALIANAJIXE NV ANNAATY

JuswysARd 90
S85 :Jaesn
WY Sg:TT £€202/07/0T



00001 9F"ETLEE {gs-zoe’e) (9% "ETL'EE) 0070 STANLIANIIXA 3 SEONIATY ACQ LEN

FT €8¢ (8L"€TE'8T) 86206 % 8L E1E"8E 00°000°01 SEYALIANEIYE TYIOL

0097 B9 66E°G 00°009°T ZET009'F 00 000 0T SEANTATT TYIOL

Ipunyd TPLICUSK S,ueIi=i2A — TOF pund

PT E8E  (BL'ETE’8Z) 85206 ¥ 8L ETE’BE 00 000°0T SEANLIANAAXE TYLOL

PT'EBE  (BL"LTIL 8T} BGT206'F 8L ETE "8E 007000701 000 3deg TR3OL

0FTLE (99°6£T7LZ) 99" ZEF'F 99 "BETLE 00"000°0T TATSE TEN3OBRIJUOC)/TPUCTSE8IO0Ig 000 008-000-T0%

00°00T (ST FLT’'T) Z6°69F ST FLT T 00°0 saTTddng souruajurel ? rredsy 000 SLL-000-TO%

000 3d=q

saxnlIpusdxy

00" 9% 89 °66E£ S 000091 ZET009 'Y 00°000°0T SHNANIATH TYLOL

00°9% 89 668°G 0070091 ZET009'Y 0oT000°0T 000 adsg Te10L

00°00T  (00°78T) go‘e 00" T8T 000 STIOJUET[ROSTH 000" ¥69-000-T0F%

6T FF 82°086°Sg 007002°T TETGIF'Y 000000t snusssy TelTded paindgIIluc) 000" ¥L9-000-TOF

000 adeg

sniUsA=Y

purg [RTIOWRN 5,URISLSA — T0F pung

assn (TYHHMONGY ) TYRMCH (ASYANOIA) ASYHEHONI  (TYIMONGY) TVHHEON LA9aNg dHGNTRY NOTIATJII8Ed WIFHON T
Iedd % AONYTYE £20Z/0£/60 HINOW £Z02/0£/60 $Z-£202

ATEVTIVAY 0d ALIAILDY AONYIVE dLA
£202/0E/60 DNIGNT QOTHAd _ quewyoIed dd
55 1x28Q

Z1/11 obeg LNERHIYYd 40 ALID ¥d04 19049 H¥YALTANHIXH ANV IONEATYT Wd S 1T £€20Z/0T/0T




LLTLTE (9G°8L57969) 99 ‘90T ‘8E¥ 96°8F% ‘9701 00-0LB61E SHTENLIQNIIXE ¥ SANNIATT A0 IAN
P M 4 68785970102 E6°GFT9LT 117005 °%0% 00°6STST9 2 SaNNA TIY - SHMNLICNAINA TYLOL
£2°5§ €€ 080 FTET 65°Z5Z 719 L9°8¥6°029 T 00'620°5€6°2 SANAA TTY - SIONIATE TYICL
L?'SH EV0VE’T {96659 7F) LSTERE'6F 007069 ‘TS STANIICNEAXA 3 SHANIATY A0 IEN
96°0T LY L¥E'EGEZ 967669 ‘¥ £G°Z9Z°1¢ 00°0TZ“S8E SHUNLIANAIXT TIIOL
£6°¢£2 06°48Z2'952 000 0T"2ZT19°08 00°006'9¢E SENMTEATY TTLOL
TANNT EEAMES - 065 puUnd
96 0T L7 LF6'ESZ 96659 % £5°292 1€ 00 0TZ 582 STYNLIANIIXT TYILOL
96 0T L7 LE6'ESE 96°659'% £65729¢'1¢ 00°0T2’'582 000 3dsg TElCL
00°0 00°000°0T oo ogo"o 0000001 ssuadxy 3sax93UTL Q00" 966-000-065
00°0 00°E€Z5°FT 0a 0 00°0 D0"ETS¥T uotieTaaIdag Q00" "896-000-06A5
000 00"0000F 0070 00°0 00°000°0% PESYIBAQ SATIRIISTUTUDY 0007 096-000-06G
0070 00°00E°0T oo 0C0 0 00 008 °0T SI030RIZUOD "JUTEN ¥ Itedey 000°0E6-000-065
L192Z FOT6RL'T 00°0 96°6T19 00°69¢’'2 S8TITTTIN 00070T6-000-065%
0S°6L LL'LET'T coto £Z°089°8 007876701 SpUOY ¥ 90UBANSUL 000°0T6-000-065
00°0 00°STS 000 00°0 00°S1IS Telusy wIozTun 000°ST8-000-065
L& 8 SO LFS'9ET 0£°F¥66°T §6°CSF‘ET 00°00070GT TATDE TEMADRINTIOD/TRUOTESHICId 000°008-000-06S
0% 6T 90" 8LEZ €L76T 699 00°G%¢€ TR TRINH 000°2ZL-000-065
00°0 00°GFS 000 00°0 00°5%G ucTiesuaduo] s,I83I0MN 000°0ZL-000-065
ZVTRT ZE'0ET’8 LO"19F 89769871 00700576 UoTEUa] 000°8TL-000-065
00°0 00°004 00°0 00"0 007004 2TqIIoNPaQ 22URINSUL T00°91L-000-06%
29702 6.°868°L 8T 862 1215072 00°0567@ 9OUBINSUT 8ITT/TeITASOH 000°9TL-000-065
T¥°81 09°85¥ T 8% 78 073282 00°SFPL'T AxTanses feTo0g 000°STL-000-069
0661 P8 S0 6T 0Z2°Z0%'T 9T GEL'¥ 00" 008°¢e BUTL TTNd — TToI&2d 000 "20L-000-065
anQ adada
soAN] TpUadxy
£6'¢e 06182967 00°0 0T*ZT2 ‘08 007006 ‘9€¢ SHONIAT TELOL
£6°ET 06 "LBZ ‘262 000 0T" 21908 007006 ‘S€E 000 3deq T®30L
000 00°006°T 00°0 00°0 007006 T S3USW]SSAUT U0 3S8I8JUI 000" $89-000-068
90°vZ 067L8E"¥6G2 00°0 0T"ZTI9 ‘08 00°000SEE E8DTAXRG IDMSG 000°3Z3-000-066
000 3daq
SOTIUSADY
ONNA 4AMAS - 065 pung
adgsn (TYIHMONEY) TWION (ISY¥IIDWU) ESVAYONT  (TYWIONIY) TYREON LA9aNd JdEaNIHY NOTILdTID5HEA dIIHON T
10ad % HONYETYH £€20Z/0£/60 HINOW £202/0E/60 FZ-£202

ATAYTIVAY

ZI/Z1  :=beg

H04 ALTATLOV

H2NYTYd QLA

£202/0E/60 ONIANA dOI¥Ed

LNAWHOEYd A0 ALTD d9Cd IH0ddd UOLIANHIXE ONY HONAALA

quswynIRg dd
ggg 198
WY G211 £202/0T/01



00°0 00°00T (9L-LG2'52) (GL"GSET’9) 9L LGZ'GE 00°0 SHIALIANAIXH 3 SHONTATE A0 LIN
00652 ‘58 £T"80T (9T 165'9) SLTGET'Y 91°T0T LB 007055708 SEANLIANAIXT THLOL
00°558 59 67 "6ET (26°808°1%) 000 Z6 BSE'CTT 00 055708 SHNNFEARY TYIOL
UIYALLSEd HANWNS dI99d9ETANTd - (62 pung
00765959 £T1°80T (9T°1T68579) SLTGET’9 9T TOT“L8 00"0GS ‘DR STINLIANTIXE TVLOL
007559769 £T°80T (9T 16579} SLUGET 9 91" TOT L8 00708508 000 3dsqg TEICL
00 598§ go-o 00700079 00°0 0070 00°000°9 AatoTTqng 020 6LL-000-082
000 99°00T {¥6"F) (00" 0%T) 6" FSL 00°GGL sasuadxd MOUS XD 970" 6LL~000-082
000 00°00T (TG LEG) 00°0 FGTLS 00°C sosuadxy obels ST0'64L-000-0G2
00°0GL'8T 66768 000862 000012 00059 °ST 00°00Z78T JUSWUTLRIDJUG 25238 £T0 6LL-000-05E
00 0%SFT GG LZT  (0T°00L’¥%} SLUSLT'F 0T 00L'TIE 00°000°LT UOTARIJSTUTWRY ~ [BATISSJ ZT0"6LL-000-06%
0070 ge-g6c  (S0'0F0'TT) 000 SOTOVL'FT 00°00L°E eoueg-bursTey pung 800" 6LL-000-06¢
00"0E0°T 007001 (00°02L'T) 000 00t0eL't 00°0 sjuaAl Awvg 3894 LO0 6LL-000-0ET
007008°T LT LY 56129 000 G0°8LE’T 00°006°T woI¥ SUBIPTTIUI-ARQ -3$94 S00°6LL-000-0GC
00°0LT b6 OF ZT°90T 000 88°€6 00°00¢ S3JeID ¥ §IAY - AeQ 3594 F00°6LL-000-052
00°005°% FZ b8 CETFE0'T 000 L9TSLY'S 00700572 ATem/o00d - ARg (PaTIS®d £00°6LL-000-052
O 000761 9% " L6 L0 699 00°0 £6°0£9°5¢ 00°00€ ‘82 ssuadxy 20UBMICIISd TO0 6LL-000-06Z
’ 000 2ad=a
SSINY TPUDART
007653759 6F 68T (26°808°1E) 0070 Z6TBSECTT 007085708 SAANTARY 'T¥I0L
007659759 6 6€T  (26°808°1%) 000 76 BSECTT 00055 ‘08 000 aded TeRIOL
00°S67 '€ G56°z79  (6Z°6LT'TE) 0070 62 622762 00050 '% ENOJURTI20STH 000" F69-000-052
00°09T°T 0ET 0T T2 081G 00°0 6L 6TE T 0070059 Jusay TeToeds agd ZO0 GL3-000-062
Qo000 cet10e (05985 79) 00" 0 05°980°¢€T 0000579 butsrey pung T00°6L9-000-052
00" 0 000 00°000°s 00" 0 000 00T000°S uyoldn e0eIH 3 PIOIPH-SIUEID Z00 065-000-052
007000 °0€ L9911 (00°000°S) 0070 007000 °SE 00000 °0€ Tpunog SACUITH § LUTAII-SIURIAD 100 065-000-05¢
00°000°€ 0o°o 000 0070 0070 000 TeD0T-S3URIS 000 065-000-05¢
0070007971 18°L2T (00°0SF“F) 00°0 00°0S¥ ‘02 00 000’9t sdrysaosuodg a3evzodIon SO0 GLE-000-05C
00°006°T 6ZTLEE (¥R SRLE) 000 8 G¥L’O 00 000’z 2ATIQ pund dIysIsquenr 00 GLE-000-052
0G°000°s ZETFS 0F"696°2 00°0 09°0£5°¢ 000059 S99 HTem/202d Z00 GLEF-000-052
oC 00T’E C6"FLT {(0C"L66°2Z) 000 0E°LEG Y 00" 000'% §31J2I0 3 S31IY 100 6LH~000-082
000 adeqg
Sanuanayd
TYATLSEA SAWWAS dEDYIgITANIE - 0SZ pund
ILEsang a=sn (FIONGY) HMON {g0ad) ¥ONT {FIONTY) FION 19009 dIANTY NOILLAIHISEA HATHAN 1D
TENIDTHO I9ad % HONYTYE £Z/0£/60 HINOKW £T0Z/0E/60 £zoe
TTICIIVAY 0A ALTATION TINYIYE dLA
£Z0Z/05/60 DNIUNE QOIdEd jusuynaed gl
§88 :Iesn
/T :sbeg INAWHYIYA A0 AITD HOd I90dTY FdALIANIAXH ONY HANHAHT WY 9Z:TT £€20Z/0T/0T



9/19/2023

KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY

INCOME
4010
4015
2020
4030
4040
4600

2024 BUDGET

(Board Approved: 09.19.23}

BUILDING PERMITS
SPECIAL PERMITS
ELECTRICAL PERMITS
MECHANICAL PERMITS
PLUMBING PERMITS
INVESTMENT INCOME

Subtotal Income

RETAINED EARNINGS  (Proposed at 12/31/2023)

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSE
6010  ADVERTISING & MARKETING
6200  BANK FEES
6450  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
6501, 03, 05 PAYROLL - WAGES
6510  PAYROLL TAXES
8511  LIFE/AD&D/STDILTD
6512°  401(a)
8513  HEALTH INSURANCE
6700  GENERAL INSURANGE
8800 © LEGAL FEES
8810  COMPUTER SUPPORT (EXTERNAL)
6820  ACCOUNTING SERVICES
7100  OFFICE EQUIPMENT
7110 OFFICE SUPPLIES
7115 POSTAGE
7120  WATER GOOLER
7125 COMPUTER (HARDWARE/SOFTWARE)
7130 RESOURCE MATERIALS
MORTGAGE
7420  LAWN CARE/SNOW REMOVAL
7450  MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS - OFFICE
7500 UTILITIES
7650  TRASH REMOVAL
7600  SECURITY (OFFICE)
7610  TELEPHONE - OFFICE
7611 TELEPHONE - CELLULAR
7700  BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS
7701 AT-LARGE/ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBER
7710  CONTRACTED BUILDING INSPECTOR
7711 CONTRACTED ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR
7712 GONTRACTED MECHANICAL INSPECTOR
7713 CONTRACTED PLUMBING INSPECTOR
7800  MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT
7810 TRAINING EXPENSE
7920 GAPITAL OUTLAY
7999  MISC
TOTAL EXPENSE

NET POSITION

404,607.00
8,169.00
141,182.00

153,060.00

53,868.00
120.00

761,016.00
430,887.69

1,191,903.69

2,000.00
890.00
720.00

320,883.67

25,017.61
4,536.00
17,670.95
58,515.98
14,102.59
12,000.00
17,995.00
.15,984.50
5,867.00
3,000.00
2,400.00
80.00
8,965.20
1,000.00
19,200.00
7,100.00
13,120.00
4,700.00
780.00
540.00
3,600.00
2,400.00

375.00

900.00
5,000.00
53,400.00
45,600.00
31,200.00
15,600.00
1,600.00
7,000.00

2,000.00

725,743.59

466,160,170




8/18/2023

KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY

BUDGET COMPARISON
2024 to 2023
INCOME 2024 2023 Diff
4010 BUILDING PERMITS 404.607.00, 330,489.00 74,118.00
4015 SPECIAL PERMITS 8,185.00; 8,121.00 48.00
4020 ELECTRICAL PERMITS 141,182.00; 115,882.00 25,310.00
4030 MECHANICAL PERMITS 153,060.005 130,578.00 22,482.00
4040 PLUMBING PERMITS 53,868.00; 61,051.00 {7,183.00)
4600 INVESTMENT INCOME 120.00 -
Subtotal Income 761,016.0 646,241.00 114,775.00
NET RETAINED EARNINGS (Propased at 12/31 of previous year} 430,887.69 201 ,028.32 229,859.37
TOTAL INCOME . 1,191,903.6 847,269.32 344,634.37
EXPENSE
6010 ADVERTISING & MARKETING 2,000.00 -
6200 BANK FEES 890.00 -
6450 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 720.00 -
6501, 03, 05 PAYROLL - WAGES 320,883.6 205,194.88 25,688.79
6510 PAYROLL TAXES 23,052.42 1,965.19
6511 LIFE/AD&D/STD/LTD 4,454 04 §1.96
6512 401(a) 16,281.77 1,389.18
6513 HEALTH INSURANCE 56,354.11 2,161.87
8700 GENERAL INSURANCE 13,254.25 848.34
6800 LEGAL FEES 12,000.00 . -
8810 COMPUTER SUPPORT (EXTERNAL) 61,400.00 {43,405.00)
6820 ACCOUNTING SERVICES 14,884.50 1,000.00
7100 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 5,867.00 0.00
7110 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,000.00 -
7115 POSTAGE 1,850.00 450.00
7120 WATER COOLER 80.00 -
7125 COMPUTER (HARDWARE/SQFTWARE) 6,806.00 2,159.29
7130 RESOURCE MATERIALS 1,000.00 -
7400 RENT EXPENSE / MORTGAGE 19,200.00 -
7420 LAWN CARE/SNOW REMOVAL 3,945.00 3,155.00
7450 MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS - OFFICE 83,120.00 {70,000.00)
7500 UTILITIES 4,300.00 400.00
7550 TRASH REMOVAL 780.00 -
7600 SECURITY (OFFICE) 540.00 -
7610 TELEPHONE - OFFICE 3,600.00 -
7611 TELEPHONE - CELLULAR 2,400.00 -
7700 BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS 375.00 -
7701 AT-LARGE/ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBER 900.00 -
7710 CONTRACTED BUILDING INSPECTOR 5,000.00 -
7711 CONTRACTED ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR 53,400.00 -
7712 CONTRACTED MECHANICAL INSPECTCOR 45,600.00 -
7713 CONTRACTED PLUMBING INSPECTOR 31,200.00 -
7800 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 13,664.00 1,936.00
7810 TRAINING EXPENSE . 1,600.00 -
7220 CAPITAL OUTLAY 7,000.0 7,000.00 -
7999 MISC 2,000.00 " 2,000.00 -
TOTAL EXPENSE 725,743,597 797,912.97 (72,169.38)
NET POSITION 466,160.10 49,356.35 416,803.75




9/19/2013

KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY

INCOME

2023 BUDGET & YTD ACTUALS

4010 BUILDING PERMITS

4015 SPECIAL PERMITS

2020 ELECTRICAL PERMITS
4030 MECHANICAL PERMITS
4040 = PLUMBING PERMITS
4100 ZONING ADMINSTRATION
4600 INVESTMENT INCOME
4700 OTHER INCOME

Subtotal Income

RETAINED EARNINGS

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSE

6010  ADVERTISING & MARKETING
6200  BANKFEES -
6450  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
6501, 03, 05 PAYROLL - WAGES
6510  PAYROLL TAXES
6511  LIFE/AD&D/STD/LTD
6512  401(a)
8513 HEALTH INSURANCE
6550  PREHIRING EXPENSE
6700  GENERAL INSURANCE
6800  LEGAL FEES
6810  COMPUTER SUPPORT (EXTERNAL)
6820  ACCOUNTING SERVICES
7100 OFFICE EQUIPMENT
7110 OFFIGE SUPPLIES
7116 POSTAGE
7120 WATER COOLER
7125  COMPUTER (HARDWARE/SOFTWARE)
7130  RESOURGCE MATERIALS
MORTGAGE ‘
7420 LAWN CARE/SNOW REMOVAL
7450  MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS - OFFICE
7500 UTILITIES
7550  TRASH REMOVAL
7800  SECURITY (OFFICE)
7610  TELEPHONE - OFFICE
7611 TELEPHONE - CELLULAR
7700 BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS
7701 AT-LARGE/ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBER
7710 CONTRACTED BUILDING INSPECTOR
7711 CONTRACTED ELEGTRICAL INSPECTOR
7712 CONTRACTED MECHANICAL INSPECTOR
7713 CONTRACTED PLUMBING INSPECTOR
7715 CONTRACTED ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
7721 - PLAN REVIEW - ELEGTRICAL
7722 PLAN REVIEW - MECHANICAL
7723 PLAN REVIEW - PLUMBING
7600  MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT
7830  INTEREST EXPENSE
7810 TRAINING EXPENSE
7920  CAPITAL OUTLAY
7999 MISC

TOTAL EXPENSE

NET POSITION

(Actuat - As of 12/31/22)

Budget Actuals
As of 8/31/23
330,489.00 407,542.00
-8,121.00 6,975.00
115,882.00 88,712.00
130,5678.00 100,588.00
61,051.00 56,060.00
0.00 6,968.75
120.00 1,309.15
0.00 68.60
646,241.00 668,233.50
306,067.61 452,916.93  (Actual - As of 08/31/23)
952,308.61 1,121,150.43
2,000.00 -
890.00 477.00
720.00 -
295,194.88 182,101.83
23,052.42 14,986.32
4,454.04 2,971.68
16,281.77 11,231.11
56,354.11 39,583.74
13,254.25 §,182.07
12,000.00 1,050.00
61,400.00 22 481,73
14,984.50 -12,064.00
5,867.00 3,433.14
3,000.00 2,390.71
1,850.00 1,226.35
80.00 16.69
£,806.00 30,411.74
1,000.00 (252.00)
19,200.00 -
3,945.00 2,857.50
83,120.00 33,920.50
4.300.00 3,251.12
780.00 44527
540.00 360.00
3,600.00 2,261.97
2,400.00 148272 -
375.00 -
£00.00 150.00
5,600.00 -
53,400.00 41,700.00
45,600.00 38,200.00
31,200.00 24,350.00
- 6,360.00
- 2,500.00
- 3,325.00
- 6875.00
43,664.00 8,775.08
- 4,150.39
1,600.00 -
7,000.00 -
2,000.00 -
797,912.97 507,120,686
154,395.64 614,029.77




KABA L

Fifariitea dver o fhag bty

2023 MONTHLY PERMITS BY JURISDICTION

"PARCHMENT

1) /gf//////

JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS PERMIT REVENUE

COMSTOCK BUILDING 10] ¢ 4,021
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 119 | ¢ 31,754
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 3113 5,397
COMSTOCK PLUMBING 914 1,822
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -1 -
COMSTOCK SPECIAL HOMEOWNER - -
DTAL COMSTOC S 6ol 8 43054
KALAMAZOO BUILDING 15| ¢ 2,797
KALAMAZOO ELECTRICAL 2613 4,189
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL 23] & 3,091
KALAMAZOO PLUMBING 713 800
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1§ 100
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER

L0

L 104.

PARCHMENT _

2PECIAL - ‘HOM EOWNER_ .

BUILDINGM

BUILDING i1 3
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL 114 301
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL 2] 8 365
PARCHMENT PLUMBING 2718 300
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -1 $ -

PINE G ROVE

SPECIAL - HOMEOWRNER

BUILDING

PINE GROVE 7] ¢

PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 6l % 808

PINE GROVE MECHANICAL 8] s 1,351

PINE GROVE PLUMBING 21 9 465

PINE GROVE SPECIAL ~ JURISDICTION -1 4 -
2} 4

$
RICHLAND ELECTRICAL 21 ¢ 2,877
RICHLAND MECHANICAL 16| 3 2,828
RICHLAND PLUMBING i3 2,219
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 3K -

RIC!.AND .

RICHLAND ILLAGE

SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER
TE

RICHLAND VILLAGE ‘

BUILDING 31 8
RICHLAND VILLAGE ELECTRICAL -1 8 -
RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL -13 -
RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING 21 % 210
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -13% -
SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER

SEPTEMBER 2022 % PREV YEAR MONTH
$ 53,813 - 150.9%
SEPTEMBER 2022 Y 2022 )
212 - 157%




1
SIS i o Ty

2023 MONTHLY PERMIYS BY JURISDICTION

JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS | PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 273 $ 277,053
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 309 $ 73,233
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 214 3 41,137
COMSTOCK PLUMBING 157 4 31,005
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 14 $ 1,450
COMSTOCK SPECIAL HOMEOWNER 4 WL

//Z//%,,a : § 4/12// 7 o 5% }7 o ,/g i /;g R 2 2 7 '::/} % i, "’
KALAMAZOO BUILDING 110 $ 40,815
KALAMAZOQ ELECTRICAL 135 3 19,548
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL 231 34,196
KAL AMAZOO PLUMBING 81 10,276
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURTSDICTEION 4L kS 3,750

KALAMAZOO

SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER

PARCHMENT BUILDING $
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL i0 $ 1,352
PARCHMENT MECHANECAL 18 2,559
PARCHMENT PLUMBING 6 $ 891
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURTSDICTION 3 3 400
LARCHMENT SPECIAL : HOMEOWNER 0
o i L ;
PINE GROVE BUILDING 38 3 21,892
PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 41 3 6,977
PINE GROVE MECHANICAL 42 $ 6,734
PINE GROVE PLUMBING 13 3,083
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1 b 100 |
PINE GRCNE SPECIAL HOM EOWNER 3 $ 165

—BULLDING

RICHLAND ELECTRICAL
RICHLAND MECHANICAL
RICHLAND PLUMBING
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION
RICHLAND SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER
[ T
RICHLAND | VILLAGE BUILDING
RICHLAND VILLAGE ELECTRICAL
RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL
RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION

RICHLAND VILLAGE

PEC AL - HOMEOWNER

"% 2023YTD

BUDGET

. 149,30%:

% 2022 - YTD

7D - SEPTEMBER 2022
L1944 o A1e Y
2023 MONTHLY CUMULATIVE TOTALS
# PERMILS REVENUE
156 % 48,411 JAN
133 34,908 FEB
276 | § 144,116 MAR
211 | € 57,279 APR
302 [ 88,502 MAY
85 1§ 86,966 JUN
360 ¢ ¢ 139,273 JUL
360 | & 139,273 AUG
33 Ts 81,235 SEP
- $ - ocT
- $ - NOV
E - BEC
2418 [ % §20,443




0%

Suprng = od4 Lo g HIsg
ANy 81

= 9POIU{] IST T JUSTUIIIIAOLY
aNv

fenuapIsay = oFesoIseg HuLDg
ANV Wd 656511 £T0Z/0£/6
ANV NV 00:00:C1 £20T/1/6

1 UosmIag PANSSTIIE(I IS,
) SpICOY TV ‘vongmdog
00'+01$
Arearuung wodoy
Q% “0&.“_”. IO 2njeA "I1SU0)) [e10 T,
00 F01$ HQ&H 10 899 [e10],
I :2dA 1, 707 sinwIag [er0 1,
AWOT JO JOOP 18T 1B Sumpue] pue sdays sou mnod pue sdxs v1a10w00 Funsxs daoway wopdoasa(y spom
0% 00+01$ £20T/81/60 AVI® SHTIVHD MOVIE  opb-011-20-90 YA SAAT €2F - 826-81-29d
JMfEA "ISUO)) [e10, 393 are( snssy J01ENUC] oum0) IaqUuIny [PoreJg ssa1ppy qof # IS

€20Z/20/01




MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor Britigan, Vice-Mayor Jordan, and Commissioners
From: Nancy R Stoddard, Parchment City Manager

Date: October 13,2023

Re: American Rescue Plan Act Funds Discussion

Background: The City of Parchment received $194,625.00 from the American Rescue Plan Act {ARPA).
After thoughtful deliberation the City Commission approved the following projects: Repaving of Wilson
Avenue, W. Glenguile, and Roberts Lane, the addition of an ADA approved entry door system at City
Hall, an electronic sign at City Hall, and the Veterans Memorial.

Discussion: The remaining balance of the ARPA funds is $31,890.60. The City Commission is required to
make a decision on how these remaining monies will be used by the 2" meeting in December.
Reminder: We have until Decernber 31, 2024 to use or lose the funds. We are trying to focus on
projects that will not cause more maintenance costs to the City.

The following suggestions have been brought forward:
* Repave the west side of the Public Works building (pavement to salt barn has broken down)
¢ Repave the lower parking lot by the playground, pickleball and tennis courts
¢ Offer facade grants to local businesses (510,000 grants to incentivize updating the outside of the
businesses)
e Refurbishing the tennis courts
* Speed humps in the north driveway entrance to Kindleberger Park
e Tree fund
* Sidewalks

Other suggestions may be offered.




MEMORANDUM

Te: Mavyor Britigan, Vice-Mayor Jordan, and Commissioners
From: Nancy R Stoddard, Parchment City Manager

Date: October 13, 2023

Re: Approval of Real Estate Attorney Services

Background: The Planning Commission with City Commission approval has rezoned the mill property to
a mixed use zoning, which will help with the development of the site. The EPA grant work will begin
soon for the northeast side of the property. As the City moves forward with the development of the mill
site we have been working to prepare the site with parcel numbers, legal descriptions, and addresses.
These last items are needed for purchase agreements. Attorney Soltis is a great asset to us as our
municipal attorney and we will be leaning on him heavily with all the amendments to the zoning
ordinances that the Planning Commission continues to align with our zoning map.

Discussion: As with the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, we found that a specialized attorney
worked best for that type of work. Due to the complexity of real estate transactions, we spoke with
neighboring communities that recommended real estate attorneys. We have vetted the list and have
spoken with J. Patrick Lennon, a real estate attorney, about our unique real estate needs. Attorney .
Patrick Lennon of Honigman would be willing to work with us much the same as our Brownfield
Attorney. He would be specifically handling real estate transactions for the City of Parchment.

Recommendation:
Motion to approve Honigman LLP to provide real estate attorney services for the City of Parchment
and to allow the City Manager to execute all documents needed.



HONIGMAN,

J. Patrick Lennon
Office: 269.337.7712
Lennon@honigman.com

E-Mail
October 10, 2023

City of Parchment

Attn: Nancy R. Stoddard
Parchment City Manager
650 S. Riverview Drive
Parchment, Michigan 49004

manager(@parchment.org

Dear Ms. Stoddard,

Thank you very much for engaging us to provide legal services to the City of Parchment
in connection with the sale and redevelopment of a former paper mill site located in Parchment,
Michigan. We appreciate the trust and confidence you have placed in us and will strive to
provide you with outstanding legal services.

When beginning a new engagement, it is the firm’s practice to set forth the agreement
between the firm and the client regarding payment of fees and costs, our bilting procedures and
the other terms of our relationship.

Our charges will be based upon the time devoted to the matter by members of our
professional staff, multiplied by their standard billing rates. Those rates are subject to
adjustment from time to time, ordinarily in January of each year. We bill time in increments of
one-quarter hour, We also charge for costs and expenses incurred in connection with the
performance of our services, as described in the attached Standard Terms of Engagement. We
bill on a monthly basis, and each statement is payable in full upon receipt.

Our law firm has a large and varied real estate, corporate, general business and litigation
practice and represents a wide range of clients across the United States and internationally. Our
firm policies require that we retain the right to represent other clients in matters which may be
adverse to you or your affiliates so long as such matters are not substantially related to the
services we will be performing for you pursuant to the engagement contemplated by this letter.
Please see the “Conflicts” section of the attached Standard Terms of Engagement.

Identifying you as a representative client, and being able to list our engagements for you,
is very helpful in developing our practice and aids us in recruiting. Unless you direct otherwise,
this engagement letter will constitute your consent to our disclosing the following information:
you as a representative client, your matters as representative matters, and descriptions of and
information regarding your matters that do not disclose confidential nonpublic information. This
includes posting information on our website, disclosure to publishers of deal league tables and
similar listings, and disseminating the information in other customary ways. In addition, your
consent to this engagement letter is deemed to satisfy the requirements of, or serves as an

Honigman LLP = 650 Trade Centre Way » Suite 200 » Kalamazoo, Michigan 49002-0402
49682112.1




HONIGMAN,

Page 2

exception to, any existing or future outside counsel guidelines or similar directives that we
receive from you on this subject, absent specific direction to the contrary that expressly
references this letter.

The Standard Terms of Engagement also sets forth additional provisions that apply to our
representation. Please call if you have any questions about either this letter or the Standard
Terms of Engagement. Also, please note that we are representing ourselves, not you, in
connection with your retention of us as your attorneys and you, of course, should feel free to
review the terms of our engagement with independent counsel.

To confirm that you have engaged us on the terms described in this letter, please sign the
enclosed copy of this letter where indicated below and return it to me. We will have no
obligation to provide legal services until you sign and return the copy of this letter. Nevertheless,
if, at your request, we commence legal services before receiving a signed copy of this letter from
you, you shall be bound by the terms of this letter, regardless of whether you sign and return the
letter.

Again, we thank you for this opportunity to be of service and look forward to working
with you.

Very truly yours,

HonNiGMAN LLP

o

J. Pafrick Ilennon

Attachment: Standard Terms of Engagement

Please execute and date the enclosed copy of this letter to indicate your agreement to the
foregoing, including the Standard Terms of Engagement which are attached:

CLIENT

By:
Nancy R Stoddard

Date:

(Rev. 052920)

Honigman LLP * 650 Trade Centre Way « Suite 200 « Kalamazoo, Michigan 49602-0402
49682112.1



HONIGMAN,

STANDARD TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT

Parties To This Agreement

This engagement is solely on behalf of the parties to this letter. Our representation of a corporation, partnership,
limited liability company, joint venture, trust, estate, trade association, or other entity does not include a representation of the
interests of the individuals or entities that are shareholders, directors, or officers of a corporation, its parent, subsidiary or
affiliate; partners of a partnership or joint venture; beneficlal owners of a limited liability company; grantor or beneficiaries
under a trust; anycne other than the personal representative of an estate in his or her representative capacity; or members of
a trade association or other entity.

Estimates Do Not Limit Fees, Costs and Expenses

From time to time we are asked to give oral or written estimates of likely fees. Unless set forth in & writing expressly
stating that the estimate is a binding cap or limitation on fees, our fees (and costs and expenses) are not limited by an
estimate, Estimates are based upon information known to us at the time, and actual fees may vary from the estimate for any
number of reasons, including but not limited fo, changing facts and assumptions, third parly actions beyond our control, and
changed circumstances. We disclaim any obligation to update or revise an estimate unless otherwise expressly agreed in
writing.

Attomey Conferences/Meetings

From time 1o time, internal conferences will take place among our personnel, and two or more may attend meetings
or proceedings on your behalf. Although this approach might seem to result in some duplication of effort, it is our belief that
this practice facilitates communication, improves the quality of the work by allowing us to utilize specialists and a proper mix of
personnel, and thus ultimately provides you with the best value. If, at any time, you are concerned about the efficiency or cost-
effectiveness of our efforts, you should express your concems to me so that we can address the issue In a timely fashion,

Costs and Reimbursable Expenses

We often find it necessary to incur cerfain expenses {and related costs and overhead charges) on our clients' behalf,
such as travel (transporiation, food and lodging), filing, recording and certification fees, business meals, title searches, court
reporters and the lke. These expenses are charged at our actual, out-of-pocket cost. (In the case of travel expenses, we
utilize an off-site travel coordinator who charges & separate fee for its services, The firn receives some minor direct benefits
from the travel agency for participating in this program.) In addition, we frequently incur other expenses such as long distance
telephane charges oulside the contiguous 48 states, photocopying and document production, computerized legal research,
telecopies, messenger and overnight courier services, and, in situations where the imposition of deadlines and other time
constraints may require it, non-lawyer staff overtime. These expenses are charged at either market rates or at actual cost plus
a factor to compensate for handling, maintenance or other ongoing expenses to the firm connected with providing these
services. In some cases, when it is difficult or burdensome {o determine aclual costs with precision, we utilize prorations,
reasonable estimates or averages.

Generally, you will be directly invoiced for significant third party expenses, such as the invaices of other professionals
whose assistance may be required (e.g., accountants, consuliants, economists, planners, experts, etc.), court reporters,
transcripts, investigations, phoicgraphs and other graphic exhibits and materials, and the like. in the eveni that we pay these
expenses on your behalf, the cost will be included with other reimbursable charges in our statement to you,

Credit Information

This agreement evidences your consent to allow us to ¢btain credit reports and similar informatioh about your
creditworthiness. In the event that we extend credit to you by allowing you te defer payment of some or all of your bills beyond
thirty (30) days, you shall provide to us promptly, upon reasonable request, accurate and complete information about your
financial condition and, upon request, you shall confirm in writing the amount of your obligation and your commitment to pay it
on terms satisfactory to us.

Conflicts and Consultations with Internal and Outside Counsel to the Firm

In part because of the number of clients that we represent and the complexity of the matters we become involved in,
from time to time issues arise that raise questions as to our duties under the professional conduct rules that apply to lawyers,
including conflict of interest issues, and issues raised because of a dispute between us and & client over the handling of a
matter. Under normal circumstances when such issues arise we would seek the advice of our firm's internal counsel, such as
its General Counsel and its Ethics Commitiee who are expert in such matters. Historically, we have considerad such
consuliations to be attorney-client privileged conversations between firm personnel and the counsel for the firm. In recent
years, however, there have been judicial decisions indicating that under some circumstances such conversations involve a
conflict of interest betwaen the client and us and that such consuitations may not be privileged, unless we either withdraw from
the representation of the client or obtain the client's consent to that consultation.

We believe that it is in our ¢lients’ interest, as well as our own, that in the event legal ethics or related issues arise
during a representation, we receive expert analysis of our obligations. Accordingly, as part of our agreement concerning our
representation, you agree that if we determine in our own discretion during the course of the representation that it is either
necessary or appropriate to consult with our firm's internal counsel {ar, if we choose, outside counsel to the firm), we have your
consent to do so and that our representation of you shall not, thereby, waive any atlorney-client privitege that our firm may
have to protect the confidentiality of our communications with counsel.

Honigman LLP * 650 Trade Centre Way * Suite 200 « Kalamazoo, Michigan 49002-0402
496821121



HONIGMAN,

This engagement is solely for the purpose of representing you in connection with the matter described in this letter
and other specific matters to which we agree our representation should extend. Accordingly. 50 long as our adverse
representation is riot substantially related to the specific matters with respect to which we perform services for you, you
consent to our firm's representation of other clients in matters that are directly adverse to, or otherwise involve you or your
affiliates, even if those matters involve arbitration, litigation or other dispute resolution praceedings. We are confident that the
vigor of our representation of you with respect to the matter described above and other matters will not be affected by our
representation of other clients, as described above.

Payments

If your payment is accompanied by the remittance copy of your invoice, we will apply the payment to that invoice. If
your payment is accompanied by clear, reasonable, written directions as to how the payment is to be applied, we will also
honor those directions. Otherwise, payment of fees will be applied In our discretion to any invoices that are outstanding at the
time payment is received.

Escrow Accounts

We ordinarily deposit retainers and other escrow funds in FDIC insured banking institutions with whom we maintain
accounts for this purpose, but will deposit the funds in an FDIC institution of your cheice if you so advise us in writing (subject
to our consent which we will not unreasonably withhold). We assume no responsibility for determining whether you have other
accounts with those institutions that could result in an aggregation of accounts in excess of FDIC or other insurance limits.
Furthermore, in the event of a bank failure, or other loss or diminution of funds in the account resulting from events beyond our
control, we shall have no responsibility to reimburse you for any amount held in escrow, whether because the amount exceeds
the applicable FDIC insurance limitation or otherwise.

Sarbanes-Oxley Section 307
Our firm has a policy regarding compliance with Section 307 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, SEC Release No.
33-8185, 17 CFR, Chapter I, Part 205. A copy of this policy is available for your review upon request.

Your Responsibilities as a Client

Unless we otherwise expressly agree in writing, the fees and charges billed to you are your responsibility whether or
not a court awards attorneys’ fees against an opposing party, or another party (such as an insurance company) has agreed to
pay our fees, Courts may award attorneys’ fees which they consider appropriate under the applicable statutes, or insurance
companias may pay amounts in accordance with their policies with you, but which are less than the amounts billed to you. In
such cases, you continue to be obligated to pay us for our actual fees and charges even though the court awards less or the
insurance company pays less.

Similarly, the parties to a dispute may agree, or a court may order, that another party is to pay some or all of our fees
or charges. This will not affect your obligation to pay our fees and charges, and we will not be obligated to enforce any such
agreement or order. Any amounts actually received by us from another party will, of course, be credited against the fees and
charges for which you are ctherwise obligated to us.

To enable us effectively to render professional services, you agree to cooperate fully with us in all matters related to
the preparation and presentation of your claims, to fully and accurately disclose to us all facts that may be relevant to the
matter or thal we may otherwise request and to keep us apprised of developments relating to the matter,

If we travel on your behalf, we charge portal-to-portal for our travel time. Whenever possible, we will endeavor to
work on your matter while traveling. if we do work on behalf of another client while traveling on your behalf (e.g., cellular
phone calls or work on beard an airplane), that time will be deducted from our charges to you. You should raise any issues or
concemns about a billing statement within a reasonable time after receipt of the statement (which we would ordinarily expect to
be no more than 60 days).

If you are not satisfied with the outcome of discussions about such matters with the attomey with whom you are
dealing, please call the firm's general number (313-485-7000) and ask for the Chief Executive Officer of the firm, who will see
to it that the apprapriate person in our firm addresses your concems,

Client Files

We maintain a file of the items reasonably necessary to your representation {"Client File"), such as correspondence,
pleadings, deposition transcripts, exhibits, physical evidence and expert reports. The Client File is your property. We may
also generate, and sometimes temporarily place in the Client File, documents containing our attorney work product, mental
impressions, precedents, research, notes and other material that we find helpful or useful but that is not essential to the
representation ("Work Product"). You agree that the Work Producl is our property. in addition, electronic documents such as
e-mail and documents prepared on our ward processing systemn, but which have not been printed in hard copy, are our
property and shall not be considered part of your Client File unless they are both reasonably necessary to your representation,
and not otherwise placed in your Client File (in hard copy or another format). You agree that we may enact and implement
reasonable retention policies for all documents, including electronic documents, and our firm has discretion lo delete and
destroy such documeants.

We ordinarily retain Client Files for seven years after the conclusion of 2 matter. We will be happy to provide your
Client File to you (excluding our Work Product) at the conclusion of the matter upon your request. i you do not request the
Client File, after the seven year period has expired, unless you advise us in writing, we shall be free to dispose of it.

Honigman LLP » 650 Trade Centre Way + Suite 200 « Kalamazoo, Michigan 49002-0402
49682112.1



HONIGMAN,

If you request us to refain the Client File beyond the period required sither by the applicable ethical rules or by law,
we shall be entitled to charge a reasonable fee for storage, but it is expressly agreed that our provision of storage service does
not continue an attorney-client relationship that has otherwise ended, as provided elsewhere in this agreement.

in the event that you request that we furn your Client File over fo you or another firm and you have not filly satisfied
all of your obligations to us under this agreement, including the payment of all fees and costs, we shall be entitled to hold the
Client File as security for performance of those obligations to the full extent permitted by the rules of professional conduct.

Electronic Communications

QOur communications with clients often involve the use of electronic mail, electronic devices (such as cell phones and
mobile devices) and web based applications, for voice and data transmission. Although this use of technology runs the risk of
"hacking” or other unintended third party access to confidential information, unless you advise us otherwise, your engagement
of us in accordance with these Standard Terms evidences your agreement that the benefits of using such technology for
communications without unique safeguards outweighs the risks of accidental or unintended third party disclosure.
Accordingly, for example, documents sent fo you by e-mail or electronically (whether or not containing confidential information)
will not be encrypted unless you request us, in writing, to encrypt outgoing e-mail and we agree and are able to implement
mutually acceptable encryption standards and protocols.

Computers, electronic devices, networks or services that are owned or controfled by a third party may not sufficiently
preserve the confidentiality of communications between us to ensure that they are protected by the attorney-client privilege.
Therefore, when communicating with us on confidential matters, you should not use a third party’'s e-mail system, computer or
network, or shared public computers such as at a tibrary or internet cafe. Instead, all confidential electronic communications
with us should be through your own, password protecied equipment, systems and accounts,

We make reasonable attempts to exclude from our e-mails and electrenic documents any virus or other defect that
might affect any computer or IT system. However, we do not accept liability for any loss or damage that may arise from the
receipt or use of electronic communications from us that contain a virus or defect that was not created by us, or that result
from the use of commercial software.

Client Billing Policies and Procedures

We sometimes receive statements from clients of billing policies, procedures, guidelines or the like, that we are
instructed to follow. In the event that you give such instructions, to the extent that they merely supplement the understandings
in this Agreement, unless we notify you to the contrary, we will take reasonable steps to honor them. However, in the event
that the terms of the instructions conflict with this Agreement, this Agreement will govern unless we otherwise expressly agree
in writing.
Attorney’s Lien

If a monetary judgment or award is made in your favor, we shall have a lien on the proceeds to the extent of any
unpaid fees, disbursements, or other charges. All payments by way of recovery, award, settfement or the like to you from third
parties shall be made jointly payable fo you and to us.

In divorce matters, yout hereby award us a valid and perfected lien on the property (including proceeds) awarded
pursuant to a Judgment of Divorce, and we may, but are not required to, file any documents we deem appropriate to give
notice of this lien {including recording a copy of this engagement lstter, Judgment of Divorce, and UCC financing statements),
in the real property records where any property subject to the Judgment of Divorce is located as well as with the appropriate
Secretary of State's office.

Term of cur Relationship

Qur attorney-client relationship will be deemed to end upon completion of the specific professional legal services that
you have retained us to perform, or if ongoing or open-ended professional lega! services are provided, not later than six
months from the last time you requested and we fumished any billable professional legal services of that kind to you
{and sooner if the facts or circumstances demonstrate it). The dale you are billed or pay for our services is irrelevant for this
purpose. If you subsequently retain us to perform further or additional professional legal services, our attomey-client
relationship will be revived, subject to these and any subsequent written terms in our engagement agreement with you. The
fact that we may inform you from time to time of developments in the law which may be of interest to you, by newsletier or
otherwise, should not be understood as, and is not, a revival of an attomey-client relationship, nor would our agreement lo
provide non-professional services such as file storage, or the use of facilities, or copies of old Client Files, revive the attorney-
client relationship.

Future Representation

We have no duty to accept new engagements from you unless mutually agreed, evan if we are representing yotr in
other matiers on an ongeing basis. If our relationship has ended, we have no obligation to represent you in connection with
related matters unless we have agreed to do so in writing. For example, in the event our engagement involves preparation of
an agreement which provides for angoing rights and obligations on your part, a dispute conceming the interpretation or
enforceability of that agreement may subsequently arise after our engagement has been terminated. In the absence of our
exprass written: agreement, you may not assume that we will continue to be free to represent you in such a future dispute. ;
Moreover, we have no obligation to inform you of deadlines, option rights, expiration dates or developments in the law, or to
file UCC confinuation statements or other documents that are required to continue or preserve your rights, unless we have
agreed in writing to do those specific things.

Honigman LLP = 650 Trade Centre Way » Suite 200 + Kalamazoo, Michigan 49002-0402
45682112.1



HONIGMAN,

Termination of Services

You have the right to terminate our representation for any reason at any time. We reserve the same right upon giving
reasonable notice.

Among the reasons which might lead us fo conclude that we should terminate our representation are (1)
nan-payment of our fees, (2} your failure to be forthright, cooperative or supportive of our efforts, (3) your misrepresentation of,
or failure or refusal to disclose, material facts to us, (4) your failure or refusal to accept our advice, (5) the discovery of a
conflict of interest with another client, or (8) any other reason permitted or required under the rules of professional conduct
goveming the legal profession.

If you terminate our representation or we elect to withdraw, you will take all steps necessary to free us of any
obligation to perform further service on your behalf, including the execution of any documents (including forms for substitution
of counsel) necessary to complete cur withdrawal. We will not be obligated to advise you of subsequent legal developments
that occur after the termination of our services or the completion of the matters for which we were engaged that might have a
bearing on those matters.

In the event of our discharge or withdrawal, we will be entitied to retain any fees based on recoveries before the date
of our withdrawal or discharge and to additicnal compensation consisting of the reasonabie value of our services aclually
rendered. We will also be entitled to payment or reimbursement of any disbursements or charges paid or incurred on your
behalf up to the date of withdrawal or discharge. Upon termination of our representation, we will submit a statement for
services rendered to the date of termination, payable in full upen receipt.

Dispute

If any controversy, dispute, or claim arises between us concerning our fees, charges, performance of legal services,
or other aspecis of our representation (a "Dispute”), the prevailing party (whether you or us) is entitled to recover all costs and
expenses in bringing and prosecuting or defending any litigation or arbitration in connection with the Dispute, including
reasonable attorneys' fees, bul subject to a limit of $50,000 in the aggregate for costs and expenses.

General Provisions

You may not assign, transfer or otherwise convey your rights or obligations under this agreement without our
consent,

This agreement shall be govemned by, construed and enforced in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of
Michigan, even if conflicts of law principles would otherwise cause the substantive laws of another State to be applied.

This document involves important legal agreements between us and you should consult independent
counsel in deciding whether or not to agree to it.
HontgmMaN LLP

(Rev. 010119)

Honigman LLP « 650 Trade Centrs Way » Suite 200 + Kalamazoo, Michigan 49002-0402
49682112.1



